VI.

1368 Research Park Dr
Beavercreek, Ohio

BEAVERCREEK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
Regular Meeting - July 9, 2025, 6:00 p.m.
Council Chambers

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. June 11, 2025 Regular Meeting
B. June 11, 2025 Work Session

PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. BZA-25-1, Sean & Andrea Daily

ADJOURNMENT



BEAVERCREEK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
REGULAR MEETING, June 11, 2025, 6:00 PM

PRESENT: Ms. Barhorst, Mr. Essman, Mr. Rader, Mr. Roach, Ms. Vest
ABSENT: None
Chairman Essman called the meeting to order followed by roll call.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Roach MOVED approval of the agenda, seconded by Mr. Rader. Motion
PASSED by majority voice vote.

MINUTES
Mr. Roach MOVED approval of the May 14, 2025 minutes as amended,
seconded by Mr. Rader. Motion PASSED by majority voice vote.

PUBLIC HEARING

V-25-2, Frank Rine, 2255 Whitey Marshall Drive

Clerk Gillaugh read the notice of public hearing on an application filed by
Frank Rine, PO Box 164, Alpha, OH 45301. The applicant is requesting a
variance from Chapter 158.043 (E)(2) to allow a access platform to be
constructed in the required side yard setback on the northeast side of the
building. The property is located at 2255 Whitey Marshall Drive further
described as Book 6, Page 25, Parcel 65 on the Greene County Property Tax
Atlas.

Mr. Funk summarized the staff report dated June 4, 2025, which stated the
applicant is requesting a variance from Chapter 158.043 (E)(2) to allow an
access platform to be constructed in the required side yard setback on the
northeast side of the building. He discussed the location of the property, and
showed a video of the site. Mr. Funk explained the property is located in the
floodplain, and the applicant is being required to raise the electric meter by
the building department above the flood level for safety reasons. He said the
applicant is also being required to build a platform and stairs to access the
electric meter by the building department. He showed a couple sketches of
what the applicant is proposing. Mr. Funk reviewed the Duncan standards, and
gave his opinion of each standard. Staff recommended approval of the case.

Frank Rine, owner of property, explained the building has had electricity since
it was built back in the late 1970’s, and Mr. Marshall ran it underground from
his house. He stated Mr. Marshall passed away, and the property was split but
the electric is still being fed by the residential home. Mr. Rine said he could
continue to pay the neighbor part of the electric bill, but he would rather have
his own meter and the building should have its own electric source since he
does not own both the properties. Mr. Rine explained the platform size would
be approximately 8 feet by 5 feet.

In public input, Martin Miller, 843 Stewart Drive, said he is opposed to the
variance and requested they deny electric to the building and for it to be in
operation. He explained he has seen the building under four feet of water and
has flooded at least eight times in the last 30 years. Mr. Miller said he has



BEAVERCREEK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS, 5/14/25

runoff concerns that comes from that, and the owner has recently cut some
trees and the debris has settled along everyone properties that surrounds the
floodwaters. He discussed his concern about the building being undermined
by the flooding and improper gutter placement and drainage. He was
concerned about noise violations, and the hours of operation. Mr. Miller stated
they tolerated Mr. Marshall in the past because he was kind of like family, and
believed the only reason that garage existed was because the City was there.
He said since the city has vacated that area, they made promises to them that
area would be turned into greenspace and would not be used anymore. Mr.
Miller thought it did not make sense to have an operating business there after
Mr. Marshall passed, and it was there understanding when Mr. Rine purchased
the lot it was going to be used for his own personal use. He said it is a full
operation automotive shop, and is wholly inappropriate in its location. Mr.
Miller explained it is a wildlife corridor there, and it on the edge of the
wetlands.

In written input, Martin Miller, 843 Stewart Drive, submitted a letter in
opposition of the variance.

Mr. Essman questioned where the easement access was. Mr. Funk showed the
location using a layout of the site, and explained the City granted them access
across their properties. Mr. Essman asked if the property had side yards on all
four sides. Mr. Funk said yes since the property does not have a front yard. He
explained the property is zoned I-1, so it has a 20-foot side yard setback. Mr.
Funk discussed the building is non-conforming, which contributes to the need
for a variance.

Mr. Roach asked for some clarification about the difference between a non-
conforming use and what they do with variances. Mr. Funk explained it is a
legal non-conforming use meaning it does not conform with the current code
but it was previously there. He said because the building is encroaching into
the side yard setback a variance is required. Mr. Roach asked how old the
building was. Mr. Rine guessed it was at least 45 years old.

Counsel Lounsbury said since they are talking about non-conforming use, he
thought it would be helpful to talk about a use variance and an area variance.
He knew they had a citizen discuss the use of the property and that is not an
issue here, and the only issue is an area variance. Counsel Lounsbury
explained the Code allows this type of business in this zoning district, and the
Board does not have jurisdiction to address that. Mr. Funk stated the
applicant does have zoning permit that allows the type of business to be
located on the parcel under discussion.

Mr. Roach questioned if staff was aware of any flooding to the building itself.
Mr. Funk said he was not aware of any, but the property is in the flood zone
so the risk of flooding is there. He explained the building is outside the
floodway, but in the flood zone. Mr. Funk said the field to the west of the
building does flood hence the reason why the building department is
requiring him to raise the meter off the ground to the level it is.



BEAVERCREEK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS, 5/14/25

Mr. Rader MOVED to approve the variance based on the criteria in Chapter
158.172 (H)(5)(a) being met, seconded by Mr. Roach. Motion PASSED by a roll
call vote of 5-0.

ADJOURNMENT
Ms. Barhorst MOVED adjournment at 6:21 p.m., seconded by Mr. Roach.
Motion PASSED by majority voice vote.

Melissa Gillaugh
Deputy Clerk



BEAVERCREEK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
WORK SESSION MEETING, June 11, 2025, Following Regular Meeting

PRESENT: Ms. Barhorst, Mr. Essman, Mr. Rader, Mr. Roach, Ms. Vest
ABSENT: None
Chairman Essman called the meeting to order followed by roll call.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Roach MOVED approval of the agenda, seconded by Mr. Radar. Motion
PASSED by majority voice vote.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Board of Zoning Appeal Procedures

Josh Lounsbury, City of Beavercreek Attorney, stated he was here tonight to
review some general guidelines and procedures for the Board. He discussed
the jurisdiction of the Board, and the two types of variances.

Counsel Lounsbury reviewed the Duncan versus Middlefield standards from
the Ohio Supreme Court. He stated the City of Beavercreek changed their
standards to mimic the Duncan standards a couple years ago. Council
Lounsbury explained these are the standards that are taken under
consideration when reviewing a variance. He discussed several examples of
cases, questioned how the Board thought the court ruled in these cases, and
reviewed the results.

Counsel Lounsbury reviewed the importance of recusing, and gave examples
of when it is necessary. He stated when taking cases into consideration, it is
important not to discuss personal opinions, and to focus on the facts of the
case only.

Counsel Lounsbury explained the Board of Zoning Appeals is a quasi-judicial
administrative body and are often referred to as the lowest court. He said it is
important the Board members do not do their own inspection of the property
or talk to the applicant or anyone else from the community pertaining to the
case prior to hearing the case. He stated the only information they should
consider is what is presented to them and said at a meeting.

Counsel Lounsbury said variances are specific to the property and not the
person. He explained the key is determining if there is something about the
property that is prohibiting the structure from being built in compliance.

ADJOURNMENT
Ms. Vest MOVED adjournment at 7:15 p.m., seconded by Ms. Barhorst. Motion
PASSED by majority voice vote.

Melissa Gillaugh
Deputy Clerk






































